VILLAGE OF COLONIE  rrank a preveati

DEPUTY MAYOR
VILLAGE HALL

2 THUNDER ROAD PATTY SCHWARZ LOCKART
COLONIE, NY 12205 TRUSTEE
(518) 869-7562 FAX (518) 464-0389 SO e UL
JAMES M. RUBINO MARK P. STEVENS
“A Place to MAYOR TRUSTEE
be Proud of villagehall@colonievillage.org JAMIE L. BLOT
www.colonievillage.org VILLAGE CLERK

PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES
TUESDAY, DECEMBER 16, 2025
6:30 P.M.

The regularly scheduled meeting of the Village of Colonie Planning Commission was
held at Village Hall, 2 Thunder Road, Albany, NY 12205, on Tuesday, December 16,

2025.
ROLL CALL: Chairman: Chris Dennis Present
Commissioners: John Martin Present
Brittany Kendall Present
Kenny Hart Present
Jim Splonskowski Present
Alison Curran Present
John Lemperle Present
Alternate: Carl Kuentzel Present
Village Attorney: Victor Caponera Present
Village Engineer: R.J. Laberge Present
Village Liaison: Frank Prevratil Present

Chairman Dennis opened the meeting at 6:30 P.M. Commissioner Hart led the Pledge of
Allegiance and requested that all electronic devices be turned off or muted. The
Commission reviewed the regular meeting minutes from October 7, 2025.
Commissioner Martin made a motion to approve the minutes as amended. Commissioner
Hart seconded the motion.

VOTE: Unanimous to approve.

Bohler Engineering/Schuyler Development
1850 Central Avenue
Sketch Plan Review — Proposed QuickChek

Chris Boyea was present with Bohler Engineering to present a sketch plan for a proposed
QuickChek at 1850 Central Avenue. Stuart Kimmel was present as the representative for
QuickChek, and numerous members of the Schulyer Development were present as the
landowner. The proposed project is a redevelopment of the site, which is currently
occupied by Walgreen’s. The plan includes demolishing the current building and
redeveloping for the new use. Mr. Boyea explained that the two-acre site is zoned
Commercial A, and the proposed use is allowed with a special permit. He added that the


mailto:villagehall@colonievillage.org

plan for this QuickChek is similar to that of the QuickChek at 32 Wolf Road that recently
went through the Village Planning Commission’s approval process. The proposed plan
includes a 6,730 square-foot retail store with 11 indoor seats and 8 outdoor seats. The site
is also shown to include 8 fuel dispensers on the Central Avenue side of the parcel. Mr.
Boyea explained that feedback on the layout of the site would be welcomed, as the
project is in the sketch phase, and this is the first meeting with the Village. He also
explained that while the zoning is Commercial A, there are residential properties to the
South and East of the site, and the intent is to keep the edge of the pavement the same as
the current site, to not further encroach on the residential properties. The site is proposed
to include mature trees along the residential side of the property. Mr. Boyea explained
that the right-of-way is 40’ of additional green space on the New Karner Road side, and
20’ of additional green space on the Central Avenue side. The right-of-way is owned and
maintained by New York State. There is a bus stop on the Central Avenue side of the site
that does encroach on the right-of-way. Mr. Boyea explained that the stormwater
management plan would be improved with the redevelopment of the site. He added that
there are already sanitary sewers and water at the site, and there would be no need to
extend main connections. Mr. Boyea stated that the curb cuts on the site would be re-
used, with no additional entrance from Central Avenue. There would be an entrance on
New Karner Road, and then from the side street, Fermac Street. Mr. Boyea turned the
discussion to the Planning Commission for feedback on the layout of the site, as he
mentioned that a variance would be needed from the Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA)
before proceeding with Planning Commission approvals.

Chairman Dennis reiterated that a variance would be required due to the setback distance
on Central Avenue from another gas station on the same side of the road. Engineer
Laberge summarized his letter submitted to the Planning Commission regarding the
sketch plan. He stated that site plan approval is required, a special permit is required due
to the use being a gas station, ZBA approval due to the distance to another gas station,
and DOT/County highway work permit. Referrals to Albany County and Town of
Colonie Planning Board will also have to be made. Engineer Laberge stated that for the
size of the lot and retail use, the required parking is 45 spaces, and the plan indicates 51
spaces, 67 including spaces at the fueling stations. He suggested moving the recycling
and trash receptacle away from Fermac Street. Engineer Laberge also expressed concern
with the driveway on Fermac Street being directly across from a residence, which is
slightly different than the existing Walgreen’s entrance. He added that stormwater
management on the site should not be an issue, but lighting may be an issue due to the
adjacent residential neighborhood.

Chairman Dennis asked where the Walgreen’s footprint falls in relation to the proposed
footprint, with regard to the loss of green space in the front of the site with the current
proposal. Mr. Boyea confirmed that there would be a loss of green space in the front.
Chairman Dennis expressed concern that the proposal is a lot for the site.

Commissioner Martin asked if the proposed QuickChek is a standard-sized store, to
which Mr. Boyea said yes. He stated that he believes this store would be slightly smaller
than the Wolf Road location. Commissioner Martin mentioned that he would like to see



an overlay of the Walgreen’s footprint on the same plan. He also asked what the
estimated traffic flow would be in and out of the site, including peak days and times. Mr.
Boyea offered that he doesn’t have this information yet, but it will be included in a later
submission. However, Mr. Boyea offered that the building coverage statistics are
indicated on the plan. It is currently 17% covered, and the proposed plan would have
16% coverage, including the building and fuel station/canopies. Chairman Dennis asked
if the 16 fueling pumps is standard, and Mr. Boyea said yes.

Commissioner Lemperle asked if the New Karner Road entrance would be used for fuel
deliveries, and Mr. Boyea stated that both entrances would likely be used for the trucks to
circulate through the site. He added that a truck turning radius would be depicted on the
full submission. Commissioner Hart asked what the hours of operation would be, and Mr.
Boyea offered that ideally, 24 hours a day. Commissioner Martin mentioned that the
hours would then affect the lighting plan.

Attorney Caponera explained the process that the applicant will now have to follow. In
accordance with Village of Colonie Code §242-8(4)(a), there cannot be more than one
gas station within 1000’ on the same side of the road. The applicant can apply to the
Zoning Board of Appeals for an area variance. The Planning Commission would then
have to receive the site plan application, deny it, and refer the applicant to the ZBA. If an
area variance is granted, the applicant would return to the Planning Commission to seek
site plan and special permit approval. A discussion was held regarding whether the sketch
plan could be denied at the current level. It was decided that the applicant should return
to the Planning Commission with an application and more detailed plans, so that it could
be reviewed to ensure that the area variance is the only variance required. The applicant
would then be referred to the Zoning Board of Appeals.

Chairman Dennis asked if the elevations would be real brick, and Mr. Boyea said yes,
and indicated that it would be the exact same as the Wolf Road location. Mr. Boyea asked
if the air and garbage/recycling station would be considered structures, and if so, they
could potentially require setback variances. Attorney Caponera asked if the garbage
structure is concrete and enclosed, and Mr. Boyea said yes. Chairman Dennis mentioned
that they would likely be on foundations, making them structures.

Commissioner Curran mentioned that with the Wolf Road location, the Commission
required coverings over the entrance to the building, and this was missing on the West
side of the proposed elevations. Chairman Dennis stated that it is a NYS Building Code
requirement, (due to snow load). Mr. Boyea asked the Commission if they are generally
content with the proposed layout, aside from the green space and traffic comments which
he had noted. Chairman Dennis expressed concern for the headlights that may impact
Fermac Street with the entrance lining up with the first house on the opposite side, and
Commissioner Kuentzel seconded this. Mr. Boyea offered that they will have an overlay
on the next submission.

Commissioner Martin asked Mr. Kimmel if any thought had been given to developing the
opposite corner of Central Avenue, where the vacant Rite Aid, Honda and Dunkin



Donuts are. Mr. Kimmel stated that they looked at all the corners and offered that the Rite
Aid property is smaller than Walgreen’s, and they would have to acquire the other
properties.

Commissioner Kendall mentioned that she would like to see the garbage enclosure
moved away from the residential side of the property if the plan allows. Chairman Dennis
stated that he would like to see the adjacent parcels indicated on the updated plan as well.
He also asked if the property had ever had subsurface drainage, and Mr. Boyea said that
there is underground stormwater at the back of the site currently.

Attorney Caponera and Engineer Laberge offered that they would notify the applicant of
the variances needed for the site, and Mr. Boyea stated that they will put together an
application and resubmit with updated plans.

Eric Larner from Schuyler Companies thanked the Commission for their comments.
Chairman Dennis asked if they will be leasing the building, like the agreement for
Walgreen’s, to which Mr. Larner said yes.

Bohler Engineering
1535-1537-1539 Central Avenue
Request for Site Plan Approval Extension

A discussion was held regarding the request for an approval extension for Taco Bell, at
1535-1537-1539 Central Avenue. At the October 7" meeting, this request was discussed.
Attorney Dumas drafted a letter from Chairman Dennis, and a resolution to be passed by
the Planning Commission, to formally grant the approval. Attorney Caponera read the
resolution aloud as presented.

Commissioner Martin made a motion to approve the Resolution for 1535-1537-1539
Central Avenue to extend site plan approval for one year.
This motion was seconded by Commissioner Hart.

VOTE: Unanimous to approve.
Motion passed.

Discussion

Planning Coordinator Curran stated that she is in receipt of two submissions that will be
reviewed at the January 6" meeting. Cole’s Collision, at 1517 Central Avenue, is looking
to annex the property next door at 1529 Central Avenue to build a secondary building.
Further, Otto Cadillac, at 1767 Central Avenue, is looking to build two additions to the
current building.

A motion was made by Commissioner Martin to adjourn the meeting.
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Hart.



VOTE: Unanimous to adjourn.

Meeting adjourned at 7:35 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Hannah Curran

Deputy Village Clerk/Treasurer
Planning Coordinator

Village of Colonie



